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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE BE AND IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 02" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)
OF THE MEMBERS OF BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY 22"
SEPTEMBER 2023 AT 12.30 PM (INDIAN STANDARD TIME) ON A SHORTER NOTICE AT
2ND FLOOR, THE CUBE-KARLE TOWN CENTRE, 100 FT, NADA PRABHU KEMPE
GOWDA MAIN ROAD, NEXT TO NAGAVARA, BENGALURU - 560045, KARNATAKA, TO
TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No. 1 - Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the
financial year ended 31% March 2023 consisting of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss,
Cash Flow Statement & Notes appended to the Annual Accounts together with Report of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:
ITEM NO. 2

TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS ORDINARY RESOLUTION.

REGULARIZATION AND APPOINTMENT OF Mr. ROMIT D’SA (DIN 10230554) AS THE
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

‘RESOLVED THAT, Mr. Romit D'Sa (DIN-10230554), who was appointed as an Additional
Director with effect from 21st July 2023 on the Board of Directors of the Company in terms of
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as an Non-Executive Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any of the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to sign the requisite forms / documents and to do all such acts, deeds and
things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give
effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

Date: 29" August 2023
Place: Bengaluru

For and on behalf of the Board Bangal Tower Private Limited

Director
DIN: 08661195
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Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or where
that is allowed, one or more proxies, to attend and vote instead of himself and that A
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. pursuant to provisions of section 105 of the
companies act, 2013, read with the applicable rules thereon, a person can act as a proxy
on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single
person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy for any other member. proxy form should be
submitted to the company at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice, statutory register and the Statement pursuant
to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the
members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on
working days up to the date of the Annual General Meeting or scan copy of the same can
be shared on the registered email id of the Shareholder on receiving the request.

3. Meeting venue: 2nd Floor, The Cube-Karle Town Centre, 100 Ft, Nada Prabhu Kempe
Gowda Main Road, next to Nagavara, Bengaluru — 560045, Karnataka,

4. Landmark: Near Manyata Tech Park, Bengaluru 560045
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

ITEM NO 2.

Mr. Romit D’Sa (DIN 10230554) was appointed as an Additional Director on 21°* July 2023
pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) and other applicable
provisions of the Act read with rule made thereunder.

The Company has received from Mr. Romit D’Sa (DIN 10230554):

a. Consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014;

b. Intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of
section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

c. Interest on other entities in the form of MBP-1 Pursuant to section 184 (1) and rule 9(1) of
Companies Act, 2013.

The proposal at item number 2 of this notice seeks the approval of members for the
regularization of Mr. Romit D’Sa (DIN 10230554) as Non-Executive Director of the Company
under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under. Mr. Romit
D’Sa (DIN 10230554) has accorded his consent to act as Director of the Company.

Except Mr. Romit D’Sa (DIN 10230554), None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their respective relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution as set out in item number 2 of the Notice
for approval of the Members.

Brief Profile of the appointee and information as per Secretarial Standard-2 and
Regulation 36 (2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 (Amended from time to time):

Details of Mr. Romit D’Sa

Name Romit D’Sa
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Age 43
Date of Birth 20/05/1980
Nationality India

Qualification

Romit D’Sa completed his MBA from NMIMS Mumbai,
master’s in commerce (M.Com) from University of
Mumbai and bachelor’s in commerce (B.Com) from
Bhavan’s College, University of Mumbai. He also
possesses the  Senior  Professional in  Human
Resources/SPHR (from HRCI, USA) and Society of Human
Resource Management-Senior Certified
Professional/SHRM-SCP (from SHRM, USA) professional
HR certifications.

Experience and expertise

Over 20 years of HR experience with market leading
companies across BFSI, Media, Consulting and Real
Estate industries.

Date of Appointment

21 July 2023

Terms & Conditions of
Appointment

As per the policy of the Company

Details of Remuneration sought [ Nil
to be paid

remuneration last drawn Nil
Shareholding in the Company Nil
Relationship with other | Nil
Directors/Managers/ KMP

Number of Board Meetings | Nil
attended during the year

disclosure of relationships | Nil

between directors inter-se

Other Directorships

As per attached
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Memberships/ Chairmanship of | NA

Committee

Last employment Worked with CapitalLand Private Limited
Awards and achievements NA

List of Directorship

SL | Names of the Companies /bodies Nature of Share Date on which
No | corporate/ firms/ association of interest or holding | interest or concern
individuals concern / arose / changed

Change in
interest or
concern

1 Keppel Land India Private Limited Director 21/07/2023

2 Keppel IA Management Private limited | Director 21/07/2023

3 Pune Tower Private Limited Director 21/07/2023

4 Pune Kharadi Tower Private limited Director 21/07/2023

Brief profile:-
Romit D’Sa

Director, Human Resources

“Romit joined Keppel Land in November 2022. He possesses over 20 years of HR
experience with market leading companies across BFSI, Media, Consulting and Real
Estate industries. Throughout his career, he has been involved in supporting all
human capital needs of the business across the spectrum of HR services. His key
strengths lie in business partnering and providing HR generalist services. By way of
qualifications, he has completed his MBA from NMIMS Mumbai, Master’s in Commerce
(M.Com) from University of Mumbai and Bachelor’s in Commerce (B.Com) from
Bhavan’s College, University of Mumbai. He also possesses the Senior Professional in
Human Resources/SPHR (from HRCI, USA) and Society of Human Resource
Management-Senior Certified Professional/ SHRM-SCP (from SHRM, USA) professional
HR certifications.”
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Annexure 2
Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

[ CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

Name of the company: Bangalore Tower Private Limited

2nd Floor, The Cube-Karle Town Centre, 100 Ft, Nada Prabhu
Registered office: Kempe Gowda Main Road, next to Nagavara, Bengaluru —
560045, Karnataka,

Name of the member (s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:
I, Shareholders Representative of
e e e (Member) holding... ... eQUIty shares of the above-
named company, hereby appoint

1 Name:

2 Address:

3 E-mail Id:

4 Signature:
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my/our behalf at the .......Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on ......day, ............. 2023 at ..........p.m. at

e e et e e e e e e e e e @Nd AL any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No:

Ordinary Business:

1.To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the financial
year ended 31%t March 2023 consisting of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Cash Flow

Statement & Notes appended to the Annual Accounts together with Report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To regularization and appointment of Mr. Romit D'Sa (DIN 10230554) as the director of the company

Signed this ......... day of ...........2023.
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Signature of

shareholder s
Signature of Proxy o
holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.
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Annexure 3
ATTENDANCE SLIP

| <<name>> certify that | am the authorized representative of ..................coociiiiiiiiiiiiiceo, @
registered shareholder of the Company, holding ................................. equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
in the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of Bangalore Tower Private Limited to be
held on [] <<date>> at [*] <<Place>> at [+] <<Time>>

For......................(Shareholder).,

<<Name>>

Authorised Signatory
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FY 2022-23

DEAR MEMBERS,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 02"* Annual Report of the Company, Bangalore Tower
Private Limited (“BTPL or Company”), along with the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the

Financial Year ended 31st March 2023.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

Key aspects of your Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 are

tabulated below:

(INR in Thousands)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gross Income 464,970.85 25,176.82
Expenditure (773,832.51) (42,942.04)
Depreciation (6,942.35) (2,499.68)

Profit/(loss) before Tax

(315,804.01)

(20,264.90)

Current Tax 4,001.90 1,015.13
Tax pertaining to earlier period = -
Profit/loss after Tax (311,802.11) (19,249.77)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 102.23 (6.01)

Total comprehensive loss for the year
(Comprising (loss) and other
comprehensive (loss) for the year)

(311,699.88)

(19,255.78)

Earnings per Equity Share

(32.00)

(1.98)

Key highlights of the Company’s Financial Performance

* Gross income earned by the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 was increased
by 1,747% to 46.49 Crore as compared to 2.51 Crore during the previous financial year ended March

31, 2022.

* Loss before tax posted by the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 was increased
by 1,458% to 31.58 Crore as against 2.02 Crore recorded in the previous financial year ended March

31, 2022.

e Loss after tax was increased by 1,520% to 31.18 Crore for the financial year ended March 31, 2023
as against 1.92 Crore in the previous financial year ended March 31, 2022.
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2. THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Company to undertake to develop the International Grade A office located at Yeshwantpur, a
prime suburban office market in West Bengaluru. It is adjacent to a premium commercial office, retail
and a residential township. When completed, it will connect directly to the sandal soap Factory Metro
Station. Located next to the new Metro Cash & Carry retail store, this smart & sustainable office
development will achieve USGBC LEED Gold rating. It comprises six levels of car parking (including
four levels of underground parking), a ground floor lobby, one amenity floor and 20 floors of office
space, with a total built-up area of 1,801,087 square feet.

3. NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AND LISTING

In March 2023, the Company issued 20,000 (twenty thousand only) listed, unsecured, rated,
redeemable non-convertible debentures with the face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One
Lakh only) each, for an aggregate amount of not more than INR 200,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Two
Hundred Crores only) (“Debentures”) on a private placement basis and same is listed in the Bombay
Stock Exchange on 15" March 2023 (ISIN: NEOLQT08018). The NCDs have a tenor of 3 years with an
interest rate of 9.80% p.a., payable semi-annually. The NCDs were rated ‘IND BBB- /Stable’ by India
Ratings at the time of the Issue.

Pursuant to the listing of the NCDs, certain SEBI Regulations apply to the Company and the Company
complies with the Regulations.

4. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 20,00,00,000/- and the Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up
Share Capital was Rs. 9,73,98,720/- as on March 31, 2023.

5. DIVIDEND & TRANSER TO RESERVES

As there were no profits generated during the year ended March 31, 2023, your Directors are not
recommending any dividend on Equity Share Capital of the Company for the period ending March 31,
2023. Hence, the amount to be transferred to any reserve account does not arise.

6. DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 2 (31) and 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 made there under.

7. BONUS SHARES AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES

There has been no issuance of bonus shares or issuance of shares for consideration other than cash or
share buy-back for the financial year ending 31 March 2023 and up to the date of signing this report.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT

Your Company has not granted any loans specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act
2013 for the financial year ending 31 March 2023 and up to the date of signing this report.

Further, your Company has neither given any guarantee/security nor made any investment for the
financial year ending 31° March 2023 and up to the date of signing this report.

ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES

Your Company has not issued any shares under Employee Stock Option. Hence disclosures specified
under Rule 12 (9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has not given any loans, guarantees, or provided securities or acquired securities of any
other body corporate exceeding the limits specified in Section 186(2) of the Act. For the particulars of
loans given, guarantees provided and investments made during the year required to be provided under
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, please refer
to Note Nos 25 of the Company’s financial statements,

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

You company has No Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Company financial year ending 31°* March
2023 and up to the date of signing this report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There is no change in the nature of business of your Company financial year ending 31 March 2023.

DETAILS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR
HAVE RESIGNED

Mr. Ng Boon Wah (DIN - 09461294) had resigned with effect from 30™ May 2023 due to his pre-
occupations.
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Mr. Romit D’Sa (DIN - 10230554), was appointed as Additional Director by the Board of Directors with
effect from 215 July 2023 and regularization of his appointment as Director was included in the notice
to the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors presently consists of 4 (Non-executive Directors) members, namely, Mr. Ho Kiam
Kheong (DIN - 08661195), Ms. Tan Boon Ping (DIN - 08256768), Mr. Abhijit Kukade (DIN: 07978648) and
Mr. Romit D’Sa (DIN - 10230554).

There were apart from the above, there were no other changes in the Director Constitution during
period ending March 31, 2023 and up to the date of signing this report.

14.

ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS IN THE MEETINGS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide various business strategies and routine
operations. The Board of Directors met 11 times during the year 2022-2023 on 22" April 2022, 20t
May 2022, 29" June 2022, 30" June 2022, 07" July 2022, 15" October 2022, 03" November 2022, 29'"
November 2022, 21° December 2022, 18" January 2023 and 14" March 2023. The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Mrk:eoo:i;m Ms. Tan Boon Ping | Mr. Abhijit Kukade Mr. Ng Boon Wah Mrgﬁiiz?:jltfaj
22" April 2022 NA NA Present NA Present
20" May 2022 NA NA Present NA Present
29" June 2022 NA NA Present NA Present
30" June 2022 NA NA Present NA Present
07" July 2022 Present Present Present Present Present
;g: 20ctober Present Leave of absence Present Present NA
503£‘;N0vember Present Leave of absence Present Present NA
gg;‘ZNovember Present Leave of absence Present Present NA
i;‘z'zDecember Leave of absence | Leave of absence Present Present NA
18" January 2023 Present Leave of absence Present Present NA
14" March 2023 Present Leave of absence Present Present NA
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1. Extra — Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held on 25" April 2022 and passed
special resolution to Increase in Authorised Share Capital of The Company and Consequential
Amendment in Memorandum of Association Of The Company.

2. Extra — Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held on 07" July 2022 and 1. passed
special resolution to Increase in Authorised Share Capital of The Company and Consequential
Amendment In Memorandum Of Association Of The Company and 2. passed special resolution and
Offer Compulsorily Convertible Debentures on a Preferential Basis Through Private Placement.3.
regularization of Mr. Ho Kiam Kheong, Mr. Tan Boon Ping and Mr. Ng Boon Wah as Director of the
Company.

3. Extra — Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held on 29" November 2022 and
passed special resolution for 1. Issue Of Listed Secured Non-Convertible Debentures Under Private
Placement and Creation of Security/Charge On The Assets Of The Company and 2. Offer Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures On A Preferential Basis Through Private Placement.

4, 1°t Annual General meeting of the Company was held on 21°! December 2022 at the registered
office of the company.

5. Extra — Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held on 18" January 2023 and passed

special resolution to issue of listed unsecured non-convertible debentures under private placement
and creation of security/charge on the assets of the company — Special Resolution

15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and on the basis of information and explanations obtained by

them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013:

i) The Company has, in the preparation of the annual accounts, followed the applicable accounting
standards along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any.

ii) The Board of Directors have selected and adopted appropriate accounting policies and the same
have been applied consistently. The judgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent,
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2023 and of
the loss for the year ended on that date.

iii) The Board has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv) The Board of Directors has prepared the financial statements for the financial year ended March
31, 2023, on a going-concern basis.
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v) Although the Company is not a listed Company; the Board of Directors have laid down internal
financial controls to be followed by the Company on the adequacy or effectiveness of operations of
such internal financial controls, and

vi) The Board of Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION:

The Company being a Private Company, disclosure under section 197(12) with regard to ratio of
remuneration of Directors to median employee’s remuneration is not applicable.

However, as required under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014, we wish to inform that, during the year under review, none of the employees
are drawing the remuneration in excess of Rs. 8.5 Lakhs per month or Rs. 100 Lakhs per annum.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk is an inherent aspect of business, especially in a dynamic economic scenario. The Company’s Risk
Management philosophy is to integrate the process for managing risk across the organization and
throughout its business and lifecycle to enable protection of stakeholder value and ensure an institution
in perpetuity.

The Company’s risk management framework is in line with the current best practices and effectively
addresses the emerging challenges in a dynamic business environment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your Company in the reporting period.

COST AUDIT

The provisions of the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Amendment Rules 2014 are not applicable to
your Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Your company prepares and maintains its accounts fairly and accurately and in accordance with the
accounting and financial reporting standards which represent the generally accepted guidelines,
principles, standards, laws & regulation. The company has an internal control system that is adequate
and commensurate with the size, complexity and nature of business. We have always believed that
transparency, system and controls are important factors in the success and growth of any organization.
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INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Companies is in the process of finalizing the appointment of internal Auditor of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
BETWEEN 1 APRIL 2023 AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report, that affect the financial
position of the company.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS.

No material changes and commitments have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report, that affect the financial
position of the company.

AUDITOR’S OBSERVATIONS AND REPLY BY THE BOARD

Your Company confirms that there are no qualifications in the statutory auditors’ report for the period
under review.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Bindu Madhava K G, Company Secretary in Practice, Bengaluru was appointed by the Board of Directors
on August 11, 2023 as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2022-2023. The Secretarial
Audit Report in form MR-3 form part of this Directors’ Report as Annexure -I. The observations made in
the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO

Conservation of Energy
Steps taken or impact on conservation of | The operations of your Company are not
energy energy — intensive and as such involve low
energy consumption. However, adequate
measures have been taken to conserve the
consumption of energy. further, the Company
operates (Registered Office only) in built to
suit facility.

The steps taken by the Company for | Not applicable

utilizing alternate source of energy
The capital investment on energy | NIL
conservation equipment
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Technology Absorption

The efforts made towards technology | Not applicable in view of the nature of
absorption activities carried out by the Company.

The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

In case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of financial year)

(a) | The details of technology imported
(b) | The year of the import

(c) | Whether the technology been fully
absorbed

(d) | If not fully absorbed area where
absorption has not taken place, and
the reason there of

(e) | The expenditure on research and
development

27. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the period under review the foreign transactions as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(INR in Thousands) | (INR in Thousands)
Foreign Exchange Earnings 1,373,600 758,400
Foreign Exchange Outgo -

28. STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules thereunder, the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 21* December 2022 had appointed of M/s. S.R. Batliboi &
Associates LLP (Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004), Chartered Accountants for the period of 5
years from the conclusion of first annual general meeting till the conclusion of 6th annual general
meeting of the Company in the line with Companies Act.

29. ANNUAL RETURN

As provided under Section 134(3)(a) and 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013, the annual return is provided on the
Company’s website at https://keppelland.com/in/btpl/investor-relations. Also attached as Annexure I11
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30. FRAUD REPORTING

31.

Your company has not entered into transactions which are fraudulent, illegal or is in violation to the
company’s code of conduct. During the period under review no frauds have occurred in the company
and no frauds were reported by the auditors of the company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Board is monitoring the issues related to Women Welfare pursuant the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There were no cases filed
pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 during the year under review.

Sl. No. Particulars Description
(a) Number of complaints of sexual harassment received during the year Nil
(b) Number of complaints disposed of during the year N.A.
(c) Number of cases pending for more than ninety days N.A.
(d) Nature of action taken by the employer or District Officer N.A.

32.

33.

KEY GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Company adopted various policies that comply with the requirements of the Act and the
applicable SEBI Regulations as part of good governance such as Whistle Blower Policy, Preservation of
documents and archival policy and determination of materiality of events and information policy
adopted by the Company are available on the Company’s website at Investor Relations | Keppel Land

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED BY THE COMPANY UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC)

During the Financial Year 2022-23, there was no application made and proceeding initiated /pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, by any Financial and/or Operational Creditors against
your Company. As on the date of this report, there is no application or proceeding pending against
your company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (“RPTS”)

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis
and were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party
transactions made by the company with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons
which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large. The particulars of contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 of the rules
prescribed under Chapter IX relating to Accounts of Companies under the Companies Act, 2013, isappended
as Annexure — I

35. ONE TIME SETTLEMENT SCHEME OBTAINED FROM BANKS

During the year under review, there was no one -time settlement scheme obtained from Banks by the
Company.

36. Credit rating
As required under Regulation 55 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015, the Company has obtained from the credit rating from Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited, a SEBI
Registered Credit Rating Agency. Details of credit rating furnished here-in-below:

listed, unsecured, rated, redeemable non-

1 | Credit rating obtained in respect of .
convertible debentures

Name of the Credit Rating Agency India Ratings & Research Private Limited
Date on which credit rating obtained January 11, 2023
Credit rating IND BBB-/Stable

Listed on 15" March 2023 in BSE, no such

5 | Revision in Credit rating . .
revisions is done so for.

Reason provided by the Agency for

Not applicable
downward revision, if any hp

37. Vigil Mechanism

The Company adopts whistle blower policy of ultimate holding Company, therefore Keppel Corporation
Limited, which is Listed at Singapore exchange Securities trading Limited. The whistle blowers may raise
their concerns to kpmgethicsline@kpmg.com and concern officer is Mr. Raghupathi Rao (General
Manager — Group Internal Audit) and his mail is raghupathi.rao@kepcrop.com

38. Details of Debenture Trustees

The Company has issued listed, unsecured, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures to M/s. DBS

Bank India Ltd. Details of the Debenture Trustees appointed for the afore-mentioned debentures are as
follows:

Name of Debenture-Trustee | Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
Registered Office GDA House, First Floor,
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Plot No. 85 S. No. 94 & 95,

Bhusari Colony (Right),

Kothrud Pune, Maharashtra - 411038, India
Local Contact Address #8/1,Groundfloor,Andreecapitol,andree
Road,Shantinagar,Bengaluru-560027

Company’'s Website

Your Company has developed and maintained its fully functional website
https://keppelland.com/in/btpl/investor-relations, which has been designed to exhibit the Company’s
businesses up-front on the home page and all the relevant details about the Company. All the mandatory
information and disclosures as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies Rules, 2014 and as
per Regulation 62 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been duly
presented on the website of the Company.

Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with all the applicable compliances of secretarial standards during year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board thanks the banks and all business associates for their co-operation and support. The Board

places on record its appreciation of services rendered by management, officers and staff of the
Company.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Date: 29" August 2023 A
Place: Bangalore W/,AAQ/

Abhijit Kukade Ho Kiam Kheon
Director Director
DIN: 07978648 DIN: 08661195
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Annexure-l|

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub section 3 of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length
transactions under third proviso thereto
1 | Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
(a) Nam.e(s) of the related party and nature of Nil il
relationship
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Nil Nil
(©) Duration of the contraclts / Nil Nil
arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Nil il
transactions including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or Nil Nil
arrangements or transactions
(f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board Nil Nil
(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil Nil
Date on which the special resolution was passed in
(h) | general meeting as required under first proviso to Nil Nil
section 188
2 | Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of NA NA
relationship
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions NA NA
(© Duration of the contracts / NA NA
arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or NA NA
transactions including the value, if any
(e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NA NA
(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil Nil
For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Bangalore Tower Private Limited
Date: 29t August 2023 / ﬁl\
Place: Bangalore S
Abhijit Kukade Ho Kiam Kheong
Director Director

DIN: 07978648 DIN: 08661195
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ANNEXURE-III

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i CIN U45309KA2021PTC152825
ii) Registration Date 07" October, 2021
iii) | Name of the Company BANGALORE TOWER PRIVATE LIMITED

Private Limited Company/ Subsidiary of Foreign
Company

2nd Floor, The Cube-Karle Town Centre, 100 Ft,
Nada Prabhu Kempe Gowda Main Road, Next
To Nagavara, Bengaluru — 560045

Tel No.: 080-6949 5555

E-Mail: BoonWah.Ng@keppelland.com

vi) | Whether listed Company Unlisted

iv) | Category/Sub-category of the Company

Address of the Registered Office
& contact details

Kfin Technologies Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower B,

Name, Address & Contact details of the Plot No. - 31 & 31, Financial District,
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Rangareddy,

Telangana - 500032, India

vii)

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company are as
follows:

Sl. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products / services product / service of the Company
(as per 2008 List)

1; Construction of Buildings 4100 100
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PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Holding / % of sh
Sl. No. | Name and Address of the Company CIN /GLN Subsidiary / h:Idares
Associate
1 Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte NA. Holding 100
Ltd Company

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2023 No. of Shares held as on March 31 2022 % of
i % of %00 | gering
Demat Physical Total Total Demat Physical Total Tota) |%H7 18 €
year
Shares Shares
A. (1) Promoters
Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 1 1 0
a) Individual/ HUF
b) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
¢) State Govt (s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) Bodies Corp. Nil 1 1 - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Banks / Fi Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
f) Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil 47,72,047 999 47,73,046 49.01 Nil
Sub-Total(A)(1): Nil 1 Nil 1 Nil 999 47,73,046 0 Nil
(2) Foreign , i : . . . : . g
a) NRls - Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
o) Other - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp. 97,39,871 Nil 97,39,871 100 49,66,825 Nil 49,66,825 50.99 Nil
d) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Any Other.... Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-Total(A)(2): 97,39,872 Nil 97,39,872 100 49,66,825 Nil 49,66,825 51 Nil
Total shareholding
of Promoters 97,39,872 1000 97,39,872 100 97,38,872 1000 97,39,872 100 Nil
(A)=(A)(1)+{A)(2)
B. 1. Public i . . ) ) . . . g
Shareholding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Venture Capital
Funds, Insurance Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Companies
g) Flis Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
h) Foreign Venture 5 : ; ; ; ; : : ;
Capital 97 Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Others (specify)
Resident Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B){1):-
Sub-total (B)(1):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indian
Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Individuals
Individual
shareholders . , . . . . . . .
holding noralnal 3h, Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital upto Rs.1
lakh
Individual
shareholders
holding nominal sh. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital in excess of
Rs.1 lakh
c) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B)(2):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 100
Total Public
Shareholding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
& ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) | 97,39,872 1000 97,39,872 100 97,38,872 1000 97,39,872 100 Nil
ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding at the beginning of .
g & e Shareholding at the end of the year
the year
:{' of % of
Shares
sl. No | Shareholder’s Name % of total Pledged / % of total| % of Shares _Change
No. of Shares of encu?nber No. of Shares of| Pledged / | during
Shares the o Shares the encumbered | the year
company total company |to total shares

shares
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Keppel
1., | westment 4966825 | 50.99 Nil | 9739871 | 100 Nil 49
(Mauritius) Pte
Ltd
Puravankara ; ; 2 .
2. . 47,72,047 48.99 Nil Nil Nil Nil -48.99
Limited
Keppel
3 | Puravankara 999 0.10 Nil Nil Nil Nil -00.10
Development
private limited
Keppel Land India
4 ; . 0 0 0 1 - Nil -
Private Limited
iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify if there is no Change)
Following were the changes in the Promoters Shareholding:
Sl N Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during the
i1 . year year
Keppel Investment (Mauritius)
Pte Ltd No. of Shares % of total Shares of No. of Shares % of total Shares of
the company the company
At the beginning of the year 49,66,825 50.99 49,66,825 50.99
Changes during the year 47,73,046 49.01 47,73,046 49,01
At the end of the year 97,39,871 100 97,39,871 100

Sl. No.: 2
Puravankara Limited

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative Shareholding during the
year

% of total Shares of

No. of Shares
the company

% of total Shares of

No. of Shares
the company

At the beginning of the year 47,72,047 48.99 0 0
Changes during the year -47,72,047 -48.99 -47,72,047 -48.99
At the end of the year -47,72,047 -48.99 -47,72,047 -48.99

SI. No.: 3
Keppel Puravankara
Development Private limited

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative Shareholding during the
year

% of total Shares of

No. of Shares
the company

% of total Shares of

No. of Shares
the company

At the beginning of the year 999 0.10 999 0.10
Changes during the year -999 -0.10 -999 -0.10
At the end of the year -999 --0.10 999 --0.10

Sl. No.: 4
Keppel Land India Private limited

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative Shareholding during the
year

% of total Shares of

No. of Shares
the company

% of total Shares of

No. of Shares
the company

At the beginning of the year

0 0

0 -
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L 1

At the end of the year

1

iv) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Following is the shareholding details of the Directors:

Shareholding at the beginning of the

Cumulative Shareholding during the

Sl. No.: 1 year year
Abhijit Kukade % of total shares of % of total shares of
No. of shares No. of share
the company the company

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00001 0 0
Increase — Nil
Decrease — Nil

At the End of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

INDEBTEDNESS

excluding deposits

Secured Loans

Unsecured
Loans

Total

Deposits Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount 3,266,552.19 S = =
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 19,030.05 -

Total (i+ii+iii)

3,285,582.24

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
e Addition
e Reduction

916,722.4 & %
Net Change 916,722.4 - - E
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 2,357,572.11 - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - = - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 11,287.73 - - -

Total (i+ii+iii)

2,368,859.84

I. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager:

Since Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company, hence, there are no

details to furnish under this head.
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B. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director, Whole-time Directors
and / or Manager

Since Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company, hence, there are no
details to furnish under this head.

C. Remuneration to other Directors:

Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration Hi Kiat Tan Boon Ping | NG Boon Wah
Kheong

Independent Directors
Fee for attending board committee meetings Nil Nil Nil

1 Commission Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil
Total (1) Nil Nil Nil IL.
Other Non-Executive Directors Nil

3 Fee for attending board committee meetings Nil Nil Nil
Commission Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil Nil Nil
Total (B)=(1+2) Nil Nil Nil

3 Total Managerial Remuneration Nil Nil Nil

4 Overall Ceiling as per the Act N.A. N.A. N.A.

PENALTIEPPUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

A. COMPANY
Type Section of the Bring Details of Penalty / Authority [RD |Appeal made, if
Companies Act | Description [Punishment / Compounding| / NCLT/ any (give
fees imposed Court] details)
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Type Section of Bring Details of Penalty / Authority | Appeal made,
the Description Punishment / [RD / NCLT / if any (give
Companies Compounding fees Court] details)
Act imposed
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Type Section of Bring Details of Penalty / Authority | Appeal made,
the Description Punishment / [RD/NCLT/ | if any (give
Companies Compounding fees Court] details)
Act imposed
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Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

For and behalf of the Board of Directors Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Date: 29'" August 2023
Place: Bangalore

Abhijit Kukade Ho Kiam Kheor

Director Director
DIN: 07978648 DIN: 08661195
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Bangalore Tower Private Limited,

2" Floor, The Cube-Karle Town Centre,

100 Ft Nada Prabhu Kempe Gowda Main Road,

Next to Nagavara, Bangalore 560045
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

| had conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Bangalore Tower Private
Limited (hereinafter called the ‘Company’), having outstanding loans or borrowings from
banks or public financial institutions of more than one hundred crore rupees. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Bangalore Tower Private Limited (Company’s) books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that
in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| had examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Bangalore Tower Private Limited (“the Company”) for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of;

0] The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules

made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder;
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Company Secretary in Practice

() The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

© The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

® Master Circular for listing obligations and disclosure requirements
for Non-convertible Securities, Securitized Debt Instruments and/
or Commercial Paper

| had also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) Other applicable laws like Income Tax Act, 1961, Goods and Service Tax Act,
2017, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016, Employees Provident
Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, ESI Act, 1948, The Karnataka Shops
and Commercial Establishments Act, 1961, The Payment of Wages Act, 1936,
Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013, The Maternity Benefits Act, 1961, The Contract Labour (Regulation and
Abolition) Act, 1970.

During the period under review and as per explanations and clarifications given to us and
the representation made by the Management, the Company has generally complied with
the provisions of other Industry specified Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines:

I, further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. And as per explanations and
clarifications given to us and the representation made by the Management the Company,
the Company has complied with applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder including appointment of Internal Auditors as per Section 138 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
every Company having outstanding loans or borrowings from banks or public financial
institutions exceeding one hundred crore rupees or more at any point of time during the
preceding financial year.
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Company Secretary in Practice

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and in absence
obtained consent from all the directors to hold Meeting at a shorter notice, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

I, further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Digitally signed by KATTI
KATTI GADAPANI GADAPANI ACHAR BINDU

H ACHAR BIN MADHAVA
Bangalore Slgnatu re MCADHA?/A DU Date: 2023.08.28 13:01:51
+05'30"
Name: Bindu Madhava K G

August 25, 2023
Company Secretary in Practice

UDIN: A050748E000862537 ACS: 50748 COP: 18800

PR 3950/2023

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.




G005, Navanitha Silver Woods,
Next to Mahaveer Lakes,
Kengeri Uttarahalli Main Road,

Bindu Madhava K G BANGALORE-560 060

Company Secretary in Practice

Email: bindumadhavakg@gmail.com
Mob: 74060 78555
WhatsApp: 99452 55922

To,

Annexure A

The Members,

Bangalore Tower Private Limited,

2" Floor, The Cube-Karle Town Centre,

100 Ft Nada Prabhu Kempe Gowda Main Road,
Next to Nagavara, Bangalore 560045

CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of Management of the Company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our Audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of

accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the Compliance

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification

of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Digitally signed by KATTI
KATTI GADAPANI GADAPANI ACHAR BINDU

Bangalore Signatu re ACHARBINDU  maDHAVA

Date: 2023.08.28 13:02:13

MADHAVA )
Name: Bindu Madhava K G

August 25, 2023

UDIN:

Company Secretary in Practice
A050748E000862537 ACS: 50748 COP: 18800

PR 3950/2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Bangalore Tower Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bangalore Tower Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
loss including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements® section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in formin g our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.

g

S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Reqd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block '8, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Assessing the recoverability of carrying value of Investment property under development (as
described in note 2.3(i), 5 of the financial statements)

As at March 31, 2023, the carrying value of the | Our audit procedures included, among others,

Investment property under development is Rs. the following:

62,52,270 thousand. The carrying value of the

investment property under development is *  We assessed the Company’s valuation

calculated using land costs, construction costs, methodology and assumptions based on

interest costs and other related costs. The current economic and market conditions,

Company reviews on a periodical basis whether applied in determining the recoverable

there are any indicators of impairment of such amount,

investment property under development, i.e., * We obtained and read the valuation report

ensuring that its investment property under used by the Company’s management for

development is carried at no more than its determining the fair value (‘recoverable

recoverable amount. amount’) of the investment property under
development.

We considered the assessment of carrying value | * We considered the independence,

of Investment property under development as a competence and objectivity of the

key audit matter due to significance of the management specialist involved in

balance and significant estimates and judgement determination of valuation.

involved in impairment assessment. *  We involved experts to review the

assumptions used by the external specialists
involved by the management.

*  We assessed the Company’s valuation
methodology applied and compared key
property related data used as input with
historical actual data.

* We compared the recoverable amount of the
investment property under development to
the carrying value in books.

¢ We assessed the disclosures made in the
financial statements in this regard.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the acc uracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
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auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Com pany for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on October 15, 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Com pany so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except that the backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on daily basis;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
. Rules, 2015, as amended;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V of the act are not applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2023;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

iv,

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049 W/E300004

darsh Ranka

artner

Membership Number: 209567
UDIN: 23209567BGXVY V1779

Place of Signature: Bengaluru, India
Date: May 30, 2023
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Annexure 1 Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Bangalore Tower Private Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we state that;

(1)

(iD)

(iif)

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

() (B)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(@)

(®)

quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Com pany
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds (registered sale deed/ transfer deed) of immovable properties (other
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements
included in Investment Property Under Development are held in the name of the
Company. Immovable properties of land whose title deeds have been pledged as
security for term loans, are held in the name of the Company based on confirmations
received by us from lenders/ trustees.

The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment during the year
ended March 31, 2023. The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the
books of the Company.

As disclosed in note 39 to financial statements, there are no proceedings initiated or
are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and,
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company,

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five
crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of
the year on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees,
provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/ services of the
Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added
tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

®

(@)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(a), (b)
& (¢)

Based on information and explanations given by the management and confirmations
given by lenders, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has used funds raised on short-term basis in the form of credits from vendors
aggregating to Rs. 7,52,297 thousand for long-term purposes representing additions
to investment property under development.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has utilized the monies raised during the year by way of initial public
offer/further public offer (including debt instruments) in the nature of non-convertible
debentures for the purposes for which they were raised.

The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ ful ly
or partially or optionally convertible debentures respectively during the year. The
funds raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor or by us in Form ADT -4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards,
The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the
requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order in so far as it relates to section
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

Though the Company is required to have an internal audit system under section 138
of the Act, it does not have the same established for the year.
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(b) We were unable to obtain any of the internal audit reports of the Company, hence the
internal audit reports have not been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year amounting to Rs.
3,08,862 thousand. In the immediately preceding financial year, the Company had
incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 17,765 thousand.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements,

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions and considering the Company’s cutrent
liabilities exceeds the current assets by Rs. 9,03,238 thousand, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xx) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(b) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For §.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

rsh Ranka

Partner
Membership Number: 209567
UDIN: 23209567BGXVYV1779

Place of Signature: Bengaluru, India
Date: May 30, 2023
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Chartered Accountanis

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered A ccountants
of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

e

darsh Ranka
Partner
Membership Number: 209567
UDIN: 23209567BGXVY V1779

Bengaluru) @ ||
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Place of Signature: Bengaluru, India
Date: May 30, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of
Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bangalore Tower Private
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

orting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
Ss .
AN



Bangalore Tower Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(Al are Rs. in th ds, unless otherwise stated)
: As at As at
||P’""'“'l’"’i i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
l:\. ASSETS
1) Non-current assets
(a) Property. plant and cquipment 4 1,949.48 3,851.88
{b) Investment property under development 5 62,52,269.85 51,19,989.66
{c) Right-of-usc asscts 6 8,034.90 -
(d) Financial asscts
(i) Other financials assets T 350.00 350.00
(¢) Income tax asscts (net) 547.72 289.82
Sub-total 62,63,151.95 51,24,481.36
(2) Current assets
{a) Financial asscts
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents 8 34245771 2,75,455.56
(ii) Loans G - 6,07,668.83
(iii) Other financials assets 7 11,902.64 425576
(b) Prepayments - 320.66
(c) Other current assets 10 2,95,220.27 1,62,264.67
' Sub-total 6,49,580.62 10,49,965.48
Total 69,12,732.57 61,74,446.84
IB. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 1.1 97,398.72 97,398.72
{b} Other equity 12 23,57.971.71 16,59,669.58
Sub-total 24,55,370.43 17,57,068.30
1(2) Non-current liabilities
(2) Financial liabilitics
{i) Borrowings 13 23,57.572.11 32,66,552.19
(ii) Lease liabilitics 30 345243 -
(b) Deferred tax liabilitics (net) 17 5,40,894.78 1,96,365.66
(c) Long-term provisions 14 2,624.68 3,325.90
Sub-total 29,04,544.00 34,66,243.75
(3) Current linbilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Trade payables 15
- Amounts due to micro and small cnterprises - 472.00
- Amounts due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4981.03 156.57
(i1) Lease liabilitics 30 5,188.56 -
(iii) Other financial liabilitics 16 5,39.831.15 1,00,089.28
(b) Other current liabilities 18 10,02,634.73 8,50,210.50
(c) Short-term provisions 14 182.67 206.44
Sub-total 15,52,818.14 9,51,134.79
Total 69,12,732.57 61,74,446.84
E.lmmn.ry of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Abhijit Kamalakar Kukade Chandrashekar S
Director Company Secretary
DIN: 07978648

J

ICAI Firm Registratie

umber: 101049W/E300004

Ho Kiam Kheon,
Director
DIM: 08661195

Place: Benpalury, India
Date: 30 May 2023

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 30 May 2023




Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

{All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

; Notes Year ended 07 Oet 2021 to
IP“"""“'” 31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 19 4,60,719.51 -
Other income 20 4,251.34 25,176.82
Total Income - (I) 4,64,970.85 25,176.82
LExpenses
Construction costs 4.60,719.51 -
Employee benefits cxpense 21 32,467.03 17,668.43
Finance costs 22 3997476 13,406.47
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 6,942.35 2,499.68
Other expenscs 24 2,40,671.21 11,867.14
Total Expenses - (11) 7.80.774.86 45.441.72
Loss before tax (111=I-11) (3,15,804.01) {20,264.90)
Tax expenses 17
Current tax - 251.24
Deferred tax charge (4,001.90) (1,266.37)|
Total Tax expense (IV) (4,001.90) (1,015.13)|
Loss for the year (V= 111-1V) (3,11,802.11) (19,249.77)
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 136.62 (8.03)
Income tax effect (34.39) 2.02
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) (VI) 102.23 (GE"
Total Comprehensive Income/ (loss) (V+VI) (3.1 ;3699,88! 119,;55.78]]
[Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Rs.10)
Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 26 (32.00) (1.98)
E.mmary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

)

Ho Kiam Kheong
Director
DIN: 08661195

Membership No.209567

Place: Bengalury, India
Date: 30 May 2023

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 30 May 2023 -

bilijit K
Director
DIN: 07978648

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Bangalore Tower Private Limited

lakar Kukade Chandrashekar §

Company Secretary



Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at 7 October 2021 - -
Issuc of share capital 97,39.872 97.398.72
As at 31 March 2022 97,39,872 97,398.72
Issue of share capital - -
As at 31 March 2023 97,39,872 97,398.72

by Other equity *

Aftributable to the equity holders of the Equity
company : 3 "“ of aetat ;
Reserves and surplus L otal cquity
1
Capital General _I’E'_ Retained .cunverhb %
: instruments
redemption reserve earnin
Balance as at 7 October 2021 - - = - -
Profit / (loss) for the period - - {19,249.77) - (19.249.77)
Issue of convertible debentures - - - 5.61.776.09 5.61,776.09
Amount transferred under the scheme of demerger 11,17,149.27 & - = 11,17,149.27
(Refer note 37)
ther comprehensive income - - (6.01) - (6.01))
As at 31 March 2022 11,17,149.27 - (19,255.78) 5,61,776.09 16,59,669.58
Profit / (loss) for the year - - (3,11,802.11) - (3,11,802.11)
Amount transferred under the scheme of demerger 18,127.00 - - - 18,127.00
(Refer note 37)
Transfer from equity component of convertible - = 13,876.43 (13,876.43) -
instruments(Refer note 12)
Issue of convertible debentures - - - 9,91,875.01 9.91,875.01
Other comprehensive income - - 102.23 - 102.23
As at 31 March 2023 11,35,276.27 - (3,17.079.23)] 15.39.774.67 23,57,971.71
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
* Also refer note 12
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Bangalore Tower Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registratiofl Number: 101049W/E300004
"
» ) ]‘\Lﬂcé_n_"'&__“&
Ho Kiam Kheong hijit Kamalakar Kukade Chandrashekar §
Director — Director Company Secretary

DIN: 08661195 DIN: 07978648

Place: Bengalury, India
Date; 30 May 2023

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 30 May 2023




Bangalore Tower Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(All arc Rs. in th ds, unless otherwise stated)
Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
k)“mc"'m 31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
’Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax (3,15,804.01) (20,264.90)
djustments to reconcile profit/ (loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization cxpense 6,942.35 2,499.68
Finance costs (including intercst on lease obligation) 39.974.76 37.57
Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment (41.48) =
Finance income (3.531.72) (2,793.32)
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (7,646.88) 1,149.28
(Increase)/ decrease in prepayments and other current assets (45,924.62) (7,73,476.15)|
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 4,352.46 31,759.46
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 2.44,024.56 43,058.47
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities 1,51,912.96 (1,525.57)]
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions (588.37) 1,131.14
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 73,670.01 (7.13.424.3-1)”
Direct taxes (paid)/ refund (257.91) 286.82
Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 73.412 (1.1 02
Cash flow from investing activity
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (822.71) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 476.02 -
Capital expenditure on investment property under development (10,23,602.05) (2,44.,140.29)|
Receipt of intercorporate deposits given 6,07,668.83 -
Interest received 4,841.56 2,138.90
Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) investing activity (B) {4.11.43 {:
Cash Mow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of non convertible debentures 20,00,000.00 -
Proceeds from issue of compulsorily convertible debentures 13,73,600.00 7.58,400.00
Proceeds from issue of optionally convertible debentures - 36,900.00
Proceeds from secured borrowings 3,09,226.95 3,60,408.61
Repayment of borrowings (32,30,856.79) -
Redemption of optionally convertible debentures {36,900.00) -
Proceeds from share allotment including securities premium - 10.00
Interest paid (10,041.77) (37.57)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 3.86,901. 11,55.681.04
MNet increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C) 48,875.15 1,95,541.63

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.75455.56 -

On account of demerger (refer note 37) - 79.913.93
|Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3.24,330.71 2.75.455.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year as above comprises:

Cash on hand - 1.00

Balance with banks

~ on current account 2.95,027.71 20,530.20
- on deposit account 47.430.00 2.54.924.36
Total cash and cash equivalents 3.42457.71 2,75,455.56 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrati

Number: 101049W/E300004

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Bangalore Tower Private Limited

M
/ C)\pﬂ!\ﬁﬂjﬁﬁe
Ho Kiam Kheong hijit Kamalakar Eiukade Chandrashekar S
Director = Director Company Secretary
Membership No.209567 DIN: 08661195 DIN: 07978648

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date; 30 May 2023

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 30 May 2023




Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(All amounts are Rs, in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information

Bangalore Tower Private Limited was incorporated on 07 October 2021, The Company is engaged in the business of inter alia constructions,
development and monitization of commercial real estate projects and non-residential spaces. The Company is a private limited company
incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Bengaluru, Kamataka, India. It has issued redecmable, rated, listed, unsceured
non-convertible debentures (NCD') on 14 March 2023, which were listed on BSE Limited (BSEY,

The financial statements have been authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on 30 May 2023,

Significant accounting policies

2.1

22

23

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {[nd AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and pt req of Division I of

Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11), as applicable to the financial statements,

The financial statements arc presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands with two decimal places, except when
otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, cxcept for the following assets and liabilities which have

been measured at fair value:
B Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year. There were
certain amendments to standards and interpretations which arc applicable for the first time for the year cnded 31 March 2023, but either the
same arc not relevant or do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not carly adopted any
standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective,

Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Revenue Recognition

i} Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based
on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the
customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indireet taxes in its statement of profit and loss,

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any),

Recognition of revenue from sale of real estate development
Revenue from real estate development of commereial unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, which generally coincides with cither of the two conditions as stated below -

- on transfer of legal title of the commercial unit to the customer; or

- on transfer of physical possession of the commercial unit to the customer.

In respect of barter arrangements wherein the land owner/ possessor provides land and in lieu of land owner providing land, the
Company transfers certain percentage of constructed arca, the revenue from development and transfer of constructed arca to land owner
is recognised over time using percentage-of-completion method (‘POC method') of accounting. Project costs include fair value of such
land received and the same is accounted on launch of the project.

In case of barter arrangements, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, the Company recognises revenue only when it can
reasonably measure its progress in satisfying the performance obligation.

When the fair value of the land received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue and cost, is measured at the fair value of the
estimated construction service rendered to the landowner, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.

ii) Interest income
Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments, is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

y) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is or contains, a lease, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,




Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The Company as lessee

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset. The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the usc of an
identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the cconomic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for
any leasc payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use asscts is subsequently
meastred at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or
useful life of right-of-usc asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily detcrmined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

¢} Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to acquisition/ construction of qualifying assets arc capitalised until the time all substantial activitics
necessary to prepare the qualifying asscts for their intended use are complete. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial
} Seals

period of time to get ready for its intended use/ sale. All other borrowing costs not eligible for inventorisation/ cap ion arc charged to
statement of profit and loss.

d) Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between
the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on the scttlement of monctary
items or on reporting monetary items of Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or
reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

e} Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the statement of

profit and loss of the year when the contributions to the Provident Fund arc due.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made by an
independent actuary at the end of each financial year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts icluded in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings
through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subscquent periods,

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees upto the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefit are discounted using the market yields at
the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

f) Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax,

Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.




Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwisc stated)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a busincss combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction.

Deferred income tax asscts are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expeeted to apply in the period when the asset is realized or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecogniscd
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assct to be recovered.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT') may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are
available as a st off against regular corporate tax payable in subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year
is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT eredit available as an assct only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specificd period, i.c., the period for which MAT credit
is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way
of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT ecredit entitlement”
asset at cach reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convineing evidence that it will pay normal
tax during the specified period.

g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchasc
price intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Each part of an item of property, plant and
cquipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applics mainly to components
for plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the camrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria arc satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

Subscquent expenditures related to an item of property, plant and cquipment are added to its book value only if they increase the future
benefits from the existing assct beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

An item of property. plant and cquipment and any significant part initially recognised is derccognised upon disposal or when no future
cconomic benefits arc expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assct) is included in the income statement when the property, plant and
equipment is derccognised.

Cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use,

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalised to
the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure {including
borrowing cosfs} incurred during the construction period which is not related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged
to the statement of profit and loss.

h) Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment
Depreciation is calculated on straight-line method basis using the following useful lives prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act,

2013 except where specified.

Particulars Estimated useful life (years)
Property, plant and equipment
i Fumiture & fittings
il Leasehold improvements *
iii Office equipment
iv Vehicles
v_Computers

L n L oL

* Leasehold improvements are amortised over the remaining primary period of lease or its estimated useful life, whichever is shorter, on a
straight-line basis.




Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

{All amounts arc Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The has estimated uscful lives and residual values of all its property, plant and equipment and belicves that depreciation rates
currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment, though these rates in certain
cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

i) Investment property under development
Projects under which tangible asscts are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost comprising direet cost, related incidental
expenses and attributable borrowing costs. Depreciation is not provided on Investment property under development until construction and
installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

j) Impairment of non financial assets
The Company assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-gencrating unit’s ('CGU") fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the discounted cash flow method ('DCF') is used where the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market asscssments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

[mpairment losses are recognised in the of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

k) Provisions and contingent liahilities
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined
based on best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date, If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the | ge of time is recognised as a finance cost,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

) Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value at initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial
asset or financial liability, except for transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss which are immediately recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

it) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income on initial recognition,

(5

(8%
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iii) Debt instruments at amortized cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subscquently measured at amortized cost using the cffective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arc an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category gencrally applies to trade and other receivables.

iv) De-recognition of financial asset
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers
the financial assct and the transfer qualifics for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

v) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilitics arc classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as payables, as appropriate. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, which is described below.

v) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilitics at fair valuc through profit or loss include financial liabilitics held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilitics are classificd as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

vi) Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilitics arc subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

vii) De-recognition of financial liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

viii) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at cach date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allc ce. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all
contract assets and/ or all trade reecivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month cxpected credit losses or at an amount cqual to the life time expected credit
losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

m) Fair value measurement
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uscs following hi hy and ptions that are based on market

conditions and risks existing at cach reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy:

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

B Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
B Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable
B Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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n) Current versus non-current classifications

The Company presents asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current or non-current classification. An asset is treated as current
when :

- It is expeeted to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- 1t is held primarily for the purposce of trading

- Itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyele

- It i held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the scttlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other liabilitics as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less , which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafls as
they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

p) Earnings per share

Basic camnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted
average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period. Eamnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s camings per share is the
net profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the
conversion of potential cquity shares, that have changed the number of equity sharcs outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted camnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to cquity sharcholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q) Statement of cash flows

Statement of Cash flows is prepared under Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash flows’ specified under Section 133 of the Act. Cash flows are
reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the cffects of transactions of non-cash nature,

Recent ac ting pr: t

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023,

i} Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements
An entity shall disclose material accounting policy information. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements. The Company
has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

ii) Ind AS 8, Accounting policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Definition of ‘change in account estimate’ has been replaced by revised definition of ‘accounting estimate’. As per revised definition,
accounting estimates are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. An entity develops
an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the
use of judgements or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable information.

An entity may need to change an accounting estimate if changes occur in the circumstances on which the accounting
estimate was based or as a result of new information, new developments or more experience. By its nature, a change in an
accounting estimate does not relate to prior periods and is not the correction of an error. The Company has evaluated the dment
and there is no impact on its financial statements.
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iii) Deferred tax related to leases and decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities
Ind AS 12, Income Taxcs, cxempt an entity from recognising a deferred tax asset or liability in particular circumstances. Despite this
exemption, an entity shall recognise a deferred tax asset—to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised—and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with (i) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and (ii) decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related asset,

The Company has cvaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement,
3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, asscts and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about thesc assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a) Judgements
In the process of applying the acc ing policies, gement has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

i) Classification of property
The Company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inveniory property:

[nvestment preperty comprises land and buildings, principally offices, that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations
of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to cam rental income and capital appreciation.
These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business.

Inventory property comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
Principally, this is property that the Company develops and intends to rent to tenants on completion of construction.
ii) Revenue from contracts with customers pursuant to barter arrangement - Refer 2.3(a)(1)

b) Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adj to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The
Company based its assumptions and cstimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about futurc developments, however, may change duc to market changes or circumstances arising that arc beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i) Impairment of non financial assets - Refer 2.3(1)(viii)
ii) Computation of perecentage completion for projects in progress, project costs and project revenues - Refer 2,3(a)(i)
iii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments - Refer 2,3(1) and 2.3(m)
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4  Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Furniture & Leasehold Office Vehicles Computers Total
fittings improvements equipment
Cost
As at 7 October 2021 ** 1,393.89 1.759.38 2,375.69 4,746.20 5,960.77 16,235.93
Additions - - - - - -
Disposals - = # = -
As at 31 March 2022 1,393.89 1,759.38 2,375.69 4,746.20 5.960.77 16,235.93
Additions - - 822.71 - - 8227
Disposals (1.393.89) (73.74) {960.61) - - (2,428.24)
As at 31 March 2023 - 1,685.64 2,237.79 4,746.20 5.960.77 14,630.40
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 7 October 2021 ** 989.02 950.21 2,126.11 2,028.29 527110 11,364.74
Charge for the year 79.91 164.69 61.98 37543 337.31 1,019.31
Disposals - = r - = -
As at 31 March 2022 1,068.93 1,114.90 2,188.09 2.403.72 5,608.41 12,384.05
Charge for the year 0.27 59.14 2593 1,951.14 254.09 2,290.57
Disposals (1,069.20) (73.74) (850.76) - - (1,993.70)
As at 31 March 2023 - 1,100.30 1.363.26 4,354.86 5,862.50 12,680.92
Net book value
As at 31 March 2022 324.96 644.48 187.60 2.342.48 352.36 3,851.88
As at 31 March 2023 - 585.34 874.53 391.34 98.27 1,949.48

** Pursuant to demerger. Refer note 37

5 [Investment property under development

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance 51,19,989.66 -

Additions 11,32,280.19 51,19.989.66

Closing balance 62.52.269.85 51,19,989.66
i. Ageing schedule

Amounts in Investment property under development for the period of

Less than 1 year 11,32,280.19 51,19,989.66

More than | year and less than 2 years 51,19,989.66 -

More than 2 year and less than 3 years - -
Mare than 3 years

Total 62,52,269.85 51,19,989.66

ii. Capital projects are modulated, based on the milestones achieved and these projects are executed as per the rolling annual plan.
iif. There are no projects under capital work-in-progress where activities has been suspended as at 31 March 2023,

iv. The Management is of the view that the fair value of investment property under development cannot be reliably measured and hence fair value
disclosures pertaining to investment property under development have not been provided.

v. Investment property under development with carrying amount of Rs. 6.252.270 Thousands (31 March 2022: Rs. 5.119.990 Thousands) have been
pledged to sccure borrowings of the Company (Refer note 13). The Investment property under development have been pledged as security for bank
loans under a mortgage.

vi. During the year ended 31 March 2022, basis the management evaluation per the revised business plan for the asset, the Company has reclassified
on fair value, basis the guidance value from inventory to Investment property under development,
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6  Right-of-use assets

Particulars Right-of-use
Building
Cost
As at 7 October 2021 *# 10,658.70
Additions =
Disposals =
As a_l'31 March 2022 10,658.70
Additions 12,686.68
Disposals =
As at 31 March 2023 23,345.38
Accumulated depreciation .
As a_t_‘f October 2021 ** 9,178.32
Additions 1,480.38
Disposals

As at 31 March 2022
Charge for the period

Disposals

As at 31 March 2023

Net book value
As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2023

** Pursuant to demerger, Refer note 37

(This space is intentionally left blank)

—ioesm0
4,651.78

15,310.48

034.90
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7  Other financial assets

Particulars Non-eurrent Current
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Security deposit - - 383.34 3,600.84
Depuosits with authorities 350,00 350.00 - -
Interest accrued on deposits - - - 654.92
Other receivables - - 11,519.30 -
350.00 350.00 11.902.64 4 76

8  Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand - 1.00
Balances with banks
~ in current accounts 2,95,027.71 20,530.20
— Deposits with less than three months maturity 47.430.00 2.54.924.36

3.42.457.71 2.78. 6

Changes in liabilitics arising from financial activitics:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Borrowings:
At the beginning of the year 32,66,552.19 -
Add: Cash inflows from banks 23,09,226.95 3,60,408.61
Add: Cash inflows on issue of compound financial instruments 13,73,600.00 7.95,300.00
Add: Loans, Inter corporate deposits and interest accrued transferred / assigned - 28,70,000.66
Less: Cash outflows on repayment of borrowings (32,30,856.79) -
Less: Redemption of compound financial instrumients (36,900.00) -
Less: Equity accounting on compound financial instruments (Inclusive of deferred tax liability) (13,24,050.24) (7.59,157.08)
Qutstanding at the end of the year 23.57.572.11 32,66,552.19
9  Loans
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

To related parties - unsecured, considered good

Carried at amortised cost
Inter corporate deposit ('1CD") (refer note 25) - 6,07,668.83
- 6.07.668.83
Loans due from:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount %o of total Amount % of total
Promoters - 0% 6,07,668.83 100%
Directors - 0% - 0%
Key managerial personnel - 0% - %
Related parties - 0% 0%

5 0% 6,07,668.83 100%
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1 Other current assets

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

To others - unsecured, considered good

Advance paid to supplicrs 2,47,535.65 1,60,500.83
Prepaid expenses 1,871.71 1.763.84
Balance with stanutery authoritics 45,712.91 -

Taotal other current assets 2.95.220.27 1.62.264.67

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8) 34245771 2,75,455.56
Loans (refer note 9) - 6,07,668.83
Other financial assels (refer note 7) 12,252.64 4.605.76
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 3.54.710.35 8.8 15

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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11 Equity share capital

Particulars

As at

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Authorised share capital

20,000,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the authorised share ca

of Rs. 10 cach,

(a

—

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par valuc of Rs.10
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is su

case of interim dividend,

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remainin

amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(b) Issued, subscribed and paid up:

2.00.000 1,00,000
2,00,000 1,00.000

pital was increased by Rs. 100,000 thousands i.c. 10,000 thousands Equity shares

per share. Each sharcholder is cligible for onc vote per share held.

bject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, cxcept in

g assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential

Particulars

As at

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

9,739,872 (31 March 2022 : 9,739,872) equity shares of Rs.10 each

(c

—

97.398.72 97,398.72
97.398.72 97,398.72

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting vear

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 97,39.872 97,398.72 1,000 10.00
Issued during the year - - 97.38.872 97,388.72
Outstanding at the end of the year 97.39.872 97,.398.72 97.39.872 97.398.72

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

No. of shares

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Lid
Puravankara Limited

As at 31 March 2023

97.39.872

% holding
100.00% 49,66,825
0.00% 47,72,047

As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares % holding

51%
49%

Note : As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders or members and other declaration received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(e} Details of shares held by Promoters

Name of the Promoter No. of shares at  Change during No. of shares at % of total % change

the beginning of the year the end of the shares during the year
the year year

As at 31 March 2023

Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited 1,000 (1,000} -

Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Ltd 49,660,825 47,73,047 97,39.872 100.00% 96.10%

Puravankara Limited 47,72,047 (47,72,047) - 0.00% -100.00%

Total 97.39,872 - 97.39.872 100.00% 0.00%

As at 31 March 2022

Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited 1,000 - 1,000 0.01% 0.00%

Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Ltd - 49,66,825 49,66,825 50.99% 100.00%

Puravankara Limited - 47,72,047 47,72.047 48.99% 100.00%

Total 1,000 97,38,872 97,39,872 100.00% 973887.20%
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12

Other equity

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

— e

(a) Capital redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning of the period/ year 11,17,149.27 -
Add: Amount transferred on Demerger - Refer note 37 18,127.00 11,17,149.27

Balance at the end of the year 1 1!355?6.;; 11,17.149.27

The excess of fair value of net assets acquired over consideration on account of demerger is recognised as capital redemption reserve,

(b) Retained earnings

(e}

Balance at the beginning of the period/ year (19,255.78) -
Profit/ (loss) for the period (3,11,802.11) (19,249.77)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 102.23 (6.01)
Transfer from equity component of convertible instruments #*#* 13.876.43 -
Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss (3,17,079.23) (19.255.78)

The cumulative profit/ (loss) arising from the opcrations which is retained by the Company is recognized and ac 1 under the heading of
retained camings. At the end of the year, the profit/ (loss) for the year including other comprehensive income/ (loss) is transferred from the
Statement of Profit and Loss to the retained carnings.

Equity component of convertible instruments
Compulsarily convertible debentures ("CCD") *

Balance at the beginning of the period/ year 547.899.66 -
Changes during the period/ year 9.91,875.01 5.47.899.66
Balance at the end of the year 15.39.774.67 5,47 6
Optionally convertible debentures ('OCD") **

Balance at the beginning of the period/ year 13.376.43 -
Changes during the period/ year*** (13.876.43) 13,876.43
Balance at the end of the year - lgig'!gfﬁ

Total other equity Q!57!971 J1 1 §59!669é8

Compulsory Convertible Debentures®

384 CCDs with face value of Rs. 100,000 cach issued by Keppel Puaravankara Development Private Limited (KPDPL) to Keppel Investment
(Maurtius) Pte Ltd, pursuant to Restated and Amended Investment Agreement dated 16 July 2021, #

1,100 CCDs with face value of Rs. 100,000 cach by KPDPL to Keppel Investment (Maurtius) Pte Ltd, purusant to agreement dated 22 September
20214

1,500 CCDs with face value of Rs. 100,000 each by KPDPL to Keppel Investment (Maurtius) Pte Ltd, pursuant to agreement dated 4 November
20214

4,600 CCDs with face value of Rs. 100,000 cach by KPDPL to Keppel Investment (Maurtius) Pte Ltd, pursuant to agreement dated 7 February
20224

Pursuant to agreement dated 4 August 2022, the Company have issued 7,236 CCDs with face value of Rs. 100,000 cach to Keppel Investment
(Maurtius) Pte Ltd,

Pursuant to agreement dated 19 December 2022, the Company have issucd 6,500 CCDs with face value of Rs. 100,000 cach to Keppel
Investment (Maurtius) Pte Ltd.

# Pursuant to the demerger (refer to note 37), the rights of the 7,584 issued CCDs by KPDPL to Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Ltd. was
transterred to the Company by way of new issue and allotment of CCDs without further consideration. Each CCD has a face value of Rs.100,000,
The carlier issued CCDs by Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited shall stand canceled post the allotment of new CCDs.

Terms
The CCDs issucd are unsccured, interest bearing at 0.05% with tenure of § years, In case of conversion of the CCD into equity shares prior to

matuirity, the CCD shall convert at the diseretion of the holder of the CCD into equity shares of the Company as per the terms of the agreement,
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Optionally Convertible Debentures™*

369 OCDs with face value of Rs. 100,000 cach by KPDPL to Puravankara Limited ##

#Pursuant to the demerger (refer to note 37), the rights of the 369 issued OCDs by KPDPL to Puravankara Limited was transferred to the
Company by way of new issue and allotment of OCDs without further consideration. Each OCD has a face value of Rs.100,000.

The carlier issued OCDs by Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited shall stand canceled post the allotment of new OCDs.

Terms

The OCDs issued are unsecured, interest bearing at 0.05% with tenure of 8 years. In case of conversion of the OCD into equity shares prior to
matuirity, the OCD shall convert at the diseretion of the holder of the OCD into cquity shares of the Company as per the terms of the agreement.

***During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has redeemed all its Optionally convertible debentures at face value, As a result of
which, the Company has transfered the corresponding equtiy component of the OCD's to retained camings.

13 Borrowings
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Debentures

- Redeemable, Non- Cenvertible Debentures ("RNCD")
20,000 RNCD of Rs 100,000 face value each (Previous year: NIL)

Term loans (Secured)
- From financial institution
- From banks

Liability component of compound financial instr
CCD's and OCD's (Refer note 12(c))

i} Terms of RNCD

20,00,000.00
- 26,48 480.38
3,09,226.95 5,82,376.41
48,345.16 35,695.40
23, 72.11 32,66,552.19

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has issued 20,000 RNCD's of Rs 100,000 each at par. These RNCD's are rated, unsecured,
listed, bears an interest of 9.80% per annum and are repayable at the end of 36th month.

i) Terms of Term loans

Particulars Interest Security details Repayment terms As at As at
rate 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Term loans from financial  PLR - 4.5% Secured by equitable mortgage Monthly instalments of amounts as - 26,48,480.38
institution of land parcel, proposed per agreement commencing 87

construction on the said land  months from the date of

of the Company and 100% disbursement of loan. Interest is

pledge over shares of the repayable on monthly basis,

Company and share of

revenue from ongoing

projects.

Further, the loan has been

guaranteed by way of

corporate guarantee given by

certain shareholders of the

Company.
Term loans from banks 11-12%  Secured by way of: Bullet repayment at the end of 3,09,226.95 5,81.208.83

a) Unconditional & 36th month from the date of

Irrevocable Corporate facility agreement.

Guarentee from Keppel Land

Limited

b) First ranking sole and
exclusive pari passu charge
and mortgage on the rights,
title of the land by way of an
equitable mortgape.
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Particulars Interest Security details Repayment terms As at As at
rate 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Term loans from banks 8.75% Securcd by motor car for 36 monthly instalments - 1,167.58
which loan is availed, commencing from April 2020,

iiiy The Company does not have any borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. There are
no requirements of filing quarterly returns or statements with banks or financial institutions as per the terms of the borrowings in this regard.
Further there are no sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any
point of time of the year.

14 Provisions

Particulars Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity (refer note 34) 1,764.78 1,870.87 182.67 206.44
- Compensated absences 859,90 1,355.03 - =
2,624.68 3,325.90 182.67 206.44

15 Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Carried at amortised cost

- Amounts due to micro and small enterprises - 472.00
- Amounts due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4.981.03 156.57
4.981.03 628.57
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
(i) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 day terms.
(ii} For explanations on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer to note 31.
Trade payable ageing schedule
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Dues to micre and small enterprises
Not due

Less than | year . 472.00
More than 1 year and less than 2 years ¥ ”
More than 2 years and less than 3 years = u
More than 3 years -

Dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Unbilled dues 2,596.00 -
Not due “ -
Less than | year 2,236.90 156,59
More than 1 year and less than 2 years 148.13 -
More than 2 years and less than 3 years - -
More than 3 years - =
4,981.03 156.59
4.981.03 628.59

There are no disputed dues payable.
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17

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
Principal amount due to micro and small enterpriscs B 472.00
Interest duc on the above - -
(i} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the - -
amounts of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year
(ii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid - -
but beyond appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act,
2006.
{iii} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year. - -
{iv) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a -
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
The above disclosures are provided by the Company based on the information available with the Company in respect of the registration status of
its vendors/ suppliers, which have been relied upon by the auditors.

Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Creditors/Accruals for capital expenditure 2,08,709.85 -

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 11,287.73 19,030.05

Payable to related parties (refer note 25) 66,500.04 71,442.65

Non-trade payables 2,53,333.53 2,616.58
—5:39.830L15  1.00089.28

Tax expenses

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax assets

Impact of difference in carrying amount of Property, plant and equipment as per tax accounts and books, §59.32 469.58
Provision for employee benefit expenses 729.91 918.40
Gross deferred tax assets 1,589.23 1,387.98
Deferred tax liahilities

On account of accounting of compound financial instruments 5,42,484.01 1,97,753.64
Gross deferred tax liabilities 5,42,484.01 1,97,753.64

Net deferred tax liabilities 5,40.894.78 1,96.365.66
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are Rs. in th ds, unless otherwise stated)

b) Current tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022:

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit/ (loss) section
Current income tax
Deferred tax
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the period/ year:

= 251.24
(4,001.90) (1,266.37)

(4,001.90) (1.015.13)

Net loss/ {gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 34.39 (2.02)
Income tax charged to OCL 34.39 {2.02)
Reconciliation of tax exp and the acc ing profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Accounting loss before income tax for the year

At India's statutory income tax rate of 26% (31 March 2022: 26%)

Add : Tax impact on timing differences

Less: Impact of income provided for tax purposes but not credited to the statement of
profit and loss in the current year and would be shown in the books in subscquent years

Other current liabilities

{3,15.804.01) {20,264.50)

(4,001.90) (1,266.37)
. 251.24

(4.001.90) (1.015.13)

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Provision for barter arrangement

10,00,940.49 8,50,000.00

Withholding taxes payable 1.500.26 -

Other statutory dues 193.98 210.50
10,02.634.73 8.50,210.50

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Breakup of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Borrowings (refer note 13)

Trade payables (refer note 15)
Other financial liabilities (refer note 16)

(This space is intentionally left blank)

23,57,572.11 32,66,552.19
4,981.03 628.57
53983115 1,00,089.28

2.384.29 33,67.270.04
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19  Revenue from operations

20

21

22

23

Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Sale of real estate developments
On barter arrangement {Commerial property) 4,60,719.51 -
4,60,719.51 -
Other income
Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 4.186.64 2,793.82
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 41.48 -
Gain on fair value towards reclassification of investment property under development - 22,371.00
Other non-operating income 23.22 12.00
4,251.34 25,176.82
Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 31,176.26 17.313.10
Gratuity expense (refer note 34) 105.95 23.00
Contribution to provident and other funds 286.94 128.09
Staff welfare expenses B97.88 204.24
32,467.03 17,668.43
Finanee costs
Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Interest
- On borrowings 4,75,224 44 4.,08,700.00
- Others 20,042,229 13,254.80
Bank charges 7122 114.10
Loss on redemption of OCD (refer note 12) 18.854.22 -
Interest obligation on lease liability 1.007.03 37.57
5,15,199.20 4,22,106.47
Less: Borrowing cost capitalised to investment property under development (4.75,224.44) (4,08,700.00)
39,974.76 13,406.47
Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Depreciation of tangible assets 2,290.57 1.019.31
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 4,651.78 1.480.37
6.942.35 2.499.68
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24 Other expenses

Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Rates and taxes 2,07,116.50 71.94
Power and fuel 64.67 196.82
Rent (net of recoveries) 84979 661.92
Repairs and maintenance 395.51 171.31
Printing, postage and stationery 4.030.54 65.10
Foreign exchange fluctuation {net) 5,844.53 760.05
Travelling and conveyance 476.21 368.71
Communication costs 229.19 20748
Insurance 14.80 -
Legal and professional fees 2131219 9.233.89
Miscellancous expenses 337.28 123.92
2,40,671.21 11,867.14
Auditor's Remuneration
Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to

31 March 2023

31 Mar 2022

Payment to auditor
As auditor:
Audit fee
Tax audit fee
As in other capacity:
Other services (certification services)

2,600.00 150.00

" 50.00
200.00 -

2.800.00 200.00

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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(All

25 Related party disclosure

a)

b)

The following table provides the name of the related party and the nature of its relationship with the Company:

Party where control/ joint control exists:
Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Ltd - Immediate holding company
Keppel Land Limited - Penultimate holding company
Keppel Corporation Limited - Ultimate holding company
Puravankara Limited - Shareholder having joint control (Upto 30 June 2022)

Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited - Shareholder (Upto 30 June 2022)

Key Managerial Personnel:
Abhijit Kamalakar Kukade, Director (From 07 October 2021)
Deepak Raj Shivaraju, Director (From 07 October 2021 to 10 August 2022)
Tan Boon Ping, Dircctor (From 07 July 2022)
Ho Kiam Kheong, Dircctor (From (07 July 2022)
Mg Boon Wah, Director (From 07 July 2022 to 30 May 2023)
Chandrashekar 8, Company Scerctary (From 29 November 2022)

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period:
Companies under 2 t
Keppel Land India Private Limited - Fellow subsidiary
Keppel Land Investments (India) Pte Ltd - Fellow subsidiary
Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited - Other related party

Transactions with related parties

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of the Company
Keppel Land Investments (India) Pte Lid

Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of related party
Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited
Keppel Land India Private Limited

Allotment of Compulsory Convertible Debentures
Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Ltd

Allotment of Optionally Convertible Debentures
Puravankara Limited

Inter-Corporate Deposits given
Puravankara Limited

Redemption of Optionally Convertible Debentures
Puravankara Limited

Inter-Corporate Deposits given recovered
Puravankara Limited

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
Chandrashekar S
Ng Boon Wah

Guarantees & collaterals received
Keppel Land Limited
Puravankara Limited

Guarantees & rals received rel

Keppel Land Limited
Puravankara Limited

24,905.76

31,537.61
5,118.80

13,73.600.00

36,900.00

6,07,663.83

1,225.50
21,653.87

44,50,000.00

25,93,500.00
16,06,500.00

13.789.32

70.08

7,58,400.00

36,900.00

6,07,668.83

212,65
19.799.30

25,93,500.00
16.06,500.00
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¢) Balance Qutstanding
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Inter Corporate Deposit

Puravankara Limited - 6,07,668.83
Compulsory Convertible Debentures

Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Lid 21.32.000.00 7.58.400.00
Optionally Convertible Debentures

Puravankara Limited - 36,900,00
Balance payable

Keppel Land Investments (India) Pte Ltd 66,348.41 41,442.65

Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited 151.63 30,000.00

Keppel Land India Private Limited 1,722.60 -
Guarantees & collaterals

Keppel Land Limited 44,50,000.00 25,93,500.00

Puravankara Limited - 16,06,500.00

Note : Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte Ltd have given Performance Guarantees on behalf of the Company.
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27

28

29

30

Earnings per share ('"EPS')

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the period attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of cquity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into cquity shares.

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars Year ended 07 Oct 2021 to
31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022

Loss after tax attributable to shareholders (3,11,699.88) (19,255.78)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS (No. in thousands) 9,739.87 9,739.87
Earning per share (in Rupces) - Basic and diluted * {32.00) (1.98)

* Since, the CCD's and OCD's are antidilutive, they have been ignored in the computation of diluted EPS.

Commitments
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Capital commitments (Net of advances) 67,29,111.19 70,23,366.02

{b) The Company enters into construction contracts with its vendors. The final amounts payable under such contracts will be based on actual
measurements and negotiated rates, which are determinable as and when the work under the said contracts are completed.

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contingent liabilitics - -
Segment information

As the Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment, there are no additional disclosures to be
provided under Indian Accounting Standard 108 'Operating Segment', other than those already provided in the financial statements.

Leases
Movement of carrying amounts of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Additions during the year ** 12,686.68 1,736.07

Add: Accretion of interest 1,007.03 37.57
Less: Payments {5,052.72) {1,773.64)
Balance at the end of the year 8,640.99 -

Movement of right to use asset is detailed in note 6

“* Pursuant to demerger for the year ended 31 March 2022, Refer note 37
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Entity as a lessee
The Company’s significant lcasing arrangement is mainly in respect of office premises.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Rental expense for operating leases included in the Statement of Profit and Loss 849.79 661.92
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 4,651.78 1, 480.38
Interest expense on lease liabilitics 1,007.03 FLAT
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in rental expense) 849.79 661.92

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments:
The Company does not have any non-cancellable operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Fi ial risk g t objectives & policies
The Company’s prineipal financial liabilitics comprise of trade and other payables and loans and borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial asscts include cash and cash cquivalents that derive directly

from its operations.

The Company is cxposed to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign curmrency risk. The Company’s scnior gement oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior ment advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework
tor the Company. The Company’s senior t cnsures that the Company’s financial risk activitics arc governed by appropriate policies and
procedurces and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Dircctors reviews and agrees policics for managing cach of these risks. which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real-estate risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include deposits and borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. The sensitivity analysis have been
prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of post retirement obligations, provisions.

The below assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the cffect of the assumed changes in respective marlket risks. This is based on the financial
assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

a. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates to primarily long-term debt obligations with floating interest
rates. The Company doces not enter into any interest rate swaps.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected.
With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for change in interest rates and its impact on profit/ (loss) before tax are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Increase in interest rates by 1% 23.,575.712 32,665.52
Decrease in interest rates by 1% {23,575.72) (32,665.52)
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B Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activitics and investing activitics (short term bank deposits). Credit appraisal is
performed by the management before agreements arc entered into with customers.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds arc made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to cach
counterparty. Counterparty credit limits arc reviewed by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company's maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is the carrying amounts.,

At the balance sheet date, there was no significant concentration of eredit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
value of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

C  Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management requires the Company to maintain sufficient cash and marketable sccurities, internally generated cash flows.
and the availability of funding resources through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars On demand Less than 1 year 1to 5 years =5 years Total

31 March 2023

Borrowings & - 23,57,572.11 - 23,57,572.11
Lease liabilities - 5,188.56 3,452.43 - 8,640.99
Other financial liabilities - 539,831.15 - - 539,831.15
Trade payables - 4,981.03 - - 4,981.03
a 5.50.000.74 23.61,024.54 - 29.11,025.28
31 March 2022
Borrowings - - - 32,66,552.19 32,66,552.19
Lease liabilities - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 1,00,089.28 - - 1,00,089.28
Trade payables - 628.57 - - 628.57
= 1.00.717.85 % 2,19 0,

D Foreign currency risk

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currency (mainly Singapore Dollar) which are subject ta the risk of exchange rate

fluctuations.
Amount in Foreign Amount in Local
Currency Currency
Currency - SGD 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2023
SGD. Rs.
Receivable - -
Payable 1,077.54 66,348.41
Net exposure 1,077.54 66,348.41
Amount in Foreign  Amount in Local
Currency Currency
Currency - SGD 31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2022
SGD. Rs.
Receivable — =
Payable 745.97 41,442.65
Net exposure 745.97 41.442.65
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Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

34 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit plan 1.947.45 2,177.31
Non-current 1,764.78 1,970.87
Current 182.67 206.44
The following tables ise the comp of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for gratuity benefit:

Changes in the projected benefit obligation:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

Change in projected benefit obligation

As at
31 March 2022

Obligation at beginning of the period* 2,177.31 1,802.46
Service cost 263.50 271.52
Interest cost 91.76 111.36
Liabilities assumed/ (settled)* {448 49 -
Net re-measurement gain through OCI (136.62) (8.03
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 1,947.45 2,177.31
*On account of business combination ordnter group transfer
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss
Service cost 263.50 271.52
Interest cost (net) 91.76 111.36
Gratuity cost 355.26 382.88
Capitalised to Investment property under development during the year/ period (249.31) (359.88)
Net gratuity cost 105.95 23.00
Re-measurement gains/(losses) in OCI
Actuarial loss due to financial assumption changes . (34.38)
Actuarial gain due to experience adjustments 136,62 2635
Net re-measurement gains/(losses) through OCI 136.62 (8.03)
Assumptions
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.40% 7.00%
Future salary increases 7.00% 7.00%
Employee turnover :
Age

21-30 0.00% 0.00%

31-57 10.00% 10.00%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant ption and its impact on projected benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Effect of + 0.5% change in rate of discounting
Effect of - 0.5% change in rate of discounting
Effect of + 0.5% change in rate of salary increase
Effeet of - 0.5% change in rate of salary increase

-3.04%
3.20%
2.16%

-2.15%

-2.64%
2.76%
2.74%

-2.64%



Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KAZ021PTC152825

{All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on projected benefit obligation as a result of

; ble changes in key ptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Within the next 12 months 182.67 206.44
Between 2 and 5 years 805.04 1,603.09
Between 5 and 10 years 1,405.64 473.56
10 years and beyond 1,000.21 1,007.16
Total expected payments 3,394.16 3,290.25

35 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issuie new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Borrowings 23,57,572.11 32,66,552.19
Trade payables 4,981.03 628.57
Other payables 15,42,465.88 9,50,299.78
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (3,42,457.71) (2,75,455.56)
Net debt 35,62,561.31 39,42,024.98
Equity share capital 97,398.72 97.398.72
Other equity 23,57.971.71 16,59,669.58
Total eapital 24,55,370.43 17,57,068.30
Capital and net debt 60,17,931.74 56,99,093.28
Gearing ratio 59.20% 69.17%

In order to achicve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings, if any, that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of
any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
36 Revenue from contracts

i) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Timing of transfer of goods or services
Revenue from goods or services transferred to customers at a point in time B -

Revenue from goods or services transferred over time 4,60,719.51 -
4,60,719.51 -




Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

(All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

37 Business combination

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had entered in to Scheme of arrangement of the demerger of commercial undertaking from
the demerged company (Keppel Puravankara Development Private Limited) to the company for a total consideration of Rs. 1.214,537.99
thousands.

Hon'ble Regional Director, Hyderabad, Ministry of Corporate Affairs had passed order dated 11 May 2022 approving the Scheme of
Arrangement of Demerger of Commercial Undertaking of demerged company with the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors
under Section 233 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, The above Demerger was given effect
during previous year ended 31 March 2022 as per the requirement under the Scheme.

In view of above, during the year Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte.Ltd has acquired the shares of the Company from erstwhile share holders,
Following the acquisition, the Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of Keppel Investment (Mauritius) Pte.Ltd.

The book value of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred are as below:

Particulars Amount

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4.871.20

Right-of-use assets 1.480.37
Other financials assets 350.00
Detierred tax assets {net) 576.85
7,278.42

Current assets
Inventories* 48,49.266.26
Cash and cash equivalents 79,913.93
Other financials assets 4,750.12
Prepayments 40,491.94
Other current assels 996.18
49,75,418.43
Total assets (A) 49,82,696.85

MNon-current liabilities

Borrowings 28,70,000.66
Long-term provisions 1,738.52
28,71,739.18
Current liabilities
Trade payables
- Amounts due to micro and small enterprises 8.065.12
- Amounts due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 8,10,804.00
Lease liabilities 1,736.07
Other financial habilities 57,030.82
Provisions 656.67
87809268
Total liabilities (B) 37,50,031.86
Net assets transferred (A-B) 12,32,664.99
Consideration to share holders of demerged company through equity share capital 97.388.72
11,35.276.27

Capital redemption reserve® SRS e AT
123266499

“During the year ended 31 March 2023, based on the subsequent reconciliation, an incremental net assets amounting to Rs. 18,127.00 thousands
was transferred and the corresponding true-up has been adjusted in current year's other equity.
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Bangalore Tower Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U45309KA2021PTC152825

{All amounts are Rs. in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

39 Other statutory information
(i) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.
(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companics struck off.
(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial period.
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entitics (Intermediarics)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{ultimate beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), including forcign entities (Funding party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwisc) that the Company shall:
(a) dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party
{ultimate beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(vii; The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

40 The Company maintains proper books of account as required by law, The books of account are electronically maintained by the Company, The
server is located in India however, the backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been
maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis.

The Company would initiate the necessary steps as regards the necessary compliance with Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) with respect to maintenance of back-ups in servers physically located in India on daily basis.

41 The Company has incurred net loss in the current year and immediately preceding previous year and the Company's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets as at March 31, 2023. The Company based on its internal assessement is confident of its ability to meet the funds requirement incase
of any shortfall in liquidity during the period of 12 months from the balance sheet date and to continue its business as a going concern and
accordingly the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on that basis.

42 Transfer pricing
As per the transfer pricing rules prescribed under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Company is examining the domestic and international transactions
and documentation in respect thereof to ensure compliance with the said rules. The management does not anticipate any material adjustment with
regard to the transactions involved.

43 Prior year comparatives

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by a firm of chartered accountants other than S.R.
Batliboi & Associates LLP,

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Rs:islﬁli}Nﬂiber: 101049W/E300004

m Bengaluru

O\
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Place: Bengalur, India
Date: 30 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Bangalore Tower Private Limited

nalakar Kikade Chandrashekar S
Company Secretary

Ho Kiam Kheong ~ Ab! i
Director Director
DIN: 08661195 DIN: 07978648

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 30 May 2023




